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Lutcher, Louisiana 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the aggregate discretely 
presented component units of the Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James as of and for the year ended 
September 30, 2018 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Housing 
Authority's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the 
financial statements of the aggregate discretely presented component units, which represents 100% of the assets, net 
position, and revenues as of December 31, 2018 of the aggregate discretely presented component units. Those 
statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates 
to the amounts included for the aggregate discretely presented component units, is based solely on the report of the 
other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Housing Authority's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Housing Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we 
express no 
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such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities and the aggregate 
discretely presented component units of the Housing Authority, as of September 30, 2018, and the respective 
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's Discussion 
and Analysis, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures 
to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary and Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the Housing Authority's basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information, as listed in the 
table of contents, which includes the financial data schedule, required by the United States Department of Housing 
and Urban Development, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the other information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The accompanying supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, which includes the financial data 
schedule, required by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development, and the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards, as required by the Uniform Guidance is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America. In our opinion, the accompanying supplementary information, as listed in the table of 
contents, which includes the financial data schedule, required by the United States Department of Housing and 



Urban Development and the sehedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by the Uniform Guidance is 
fairly stated, in all material respects, in lelation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The other information, as listed in the table of contents, has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance 
on it. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In aeeordanee with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 25, 2019 on our 
consideration of the Housing Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that 
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to pr-ovide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Housing Authority's internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Housing Authority's internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

ALLEN, GREEN & WILLIAMSON, LLP 

Monroe, Louisiana 
June 25, 2019 
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Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

September 30, 2018 

The Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James, hereinafter referred to as "the Authority", management's 
discussion and analysis is designed to (a) assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues; (b) provide an 
overview of the Authority's financial activity; (c) identify changes in the Authority's financial position; and, (d) 
identify individual fund issues or concerns. 

Since the Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current year's activities, 
resulting changes and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with the Authority's financial statements. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The Authority's net position increased by $262,397 during 2018. Net Position was $4,715,441 and 
$4,453,044 for 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

• Revenues, excluding capital grants, increased by $20. Revenues were $2,103,328 and $2,103,308 for 2018 
and 2017, respectively. 

• The total expenses for all Authority programs decreased by $441,775. Total expenses were $2,111,095 and 
$2,552,870 for 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

• During the fiscal year, the Housing Authority converted two developments. Convent and Central, to the 
Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) program. Due to the conversion, these properties are now 
considered to be discretely presented component units: Convent Trace Development, L.P. and Central 
Crossing Development, L.P., in which the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018 was reported. The total 
operating revenues for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018 were $238,161 and total operating expenses 
were $701,612. The total nonoperating expenses were $139,193 and contributions were $1,617,260. The 
change in net position was $1,014,616. A copy of the Convent Trace Development, L.P.'s and Central 
Crossing Development, L.P.'s audit reports can be obtained from the Housing Authority. 



Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

September 30, 2018 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

The Report includes three major sections, the "Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)", "Basic Financial 
Statements", and "Supplementary Information": 

Required Supplementary Information 
Management's Discussion & Analysis (MD&A) 

Basic Financial Statements 

Authority-wide Financial Statements 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

Supplementary Information 
Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments to Agency Head 

Schedule of Compensation Paid Board Members 
Financial Data Schedule 

Actual Capital Fund Cost Certificate 

Single Audit Information 

Other Information 

The primary focus of the Authority's financial statements is on the Authority as a whole. This allows the user to 
address relevant questions, broaden a basis for comparison (year to year or Authority to Authority) and enhance the 
Authority's accountability. 

Fund Financial Statements 

These Statements include a Statement of Net Position which reports all financial and capital resources for the 
Authority. The statement is presented in the format where assets plus deferred outflows of resources minus 
liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources equals "Net Position". Assets, liabilities and deferred outflows/inflows 
of resources are presented in order of liquidity, and are classified as "Current" (convertible into cash within one 
year) and "Non-current". 

10 



Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

September 30, 2018 

The focus of the Statement of Net Position (the "Unrestricted Net Position") is designed to represent the net 
available liquid (non-capital) assets and deferred outflows of resources, net of liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources, for the entire Authority. Net Position is reported in three broad categories: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets: This component of net position consists of all capital assets, reduced by the 
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets. 

Restricted Net Position: This component of net position consists of restricted assets, when constraints are placed 
on the asset by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, laws, regulations, etc. 

Unrestricted Net Position: Consists of net position that do not meet the definition of "Net Investment in Capital 
Assets" or "Restricted Net Position". 

The financial statements also include a Statement of Revenues. Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position (similar 
to an Income Statement). This Statement includes operating revenues, such as rental income, operating expenses, 
such as administrative, utilities, and maintenance, and depreciation, and non-operating revenue and expenses, such 
as capital grant revenue, investment income and interest expense. 

The focus of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position is the "Change in Net 
Position", which is similar to net income or loss. 

Finally, a Statement of Cash Flows is included, which discloses net cash provided by, or used for operating 
activities, capital and related financing activities, and from investing activities. 

The Authority uses the enterprise fund basis for accounting, which utilizes the full accrual basis. The enterprise 
method of accounting is similar to accounting used by the private sector for accounting. 

The Authority's Programs 

Conventional Public Housing - Under the Conventional Public Housing Program, the Authority rents units that it 
owns to low-income households. The Conventional Public Housing Program is operated under an Annual 
Contributions Contract (ACC) with HUD, and HUD provides Operating Subsidy and Capital Grant funding to 
enable the PHA to provide the housing at a rent that is based upon 30% of household income. The Conventional 
Public Housing Program also includes the Capital Fund Program, which is the primary funding source for physical 
and management improvements to the Authority's properties. 

11 



Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

September 30, 2018 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Statement of Net Position 

The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position of the primary government compared to prior 
year. The Authority is engaged only in Business-Type Activities. 

TABLE 1 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

Current assets 
Restticted assets 
Noncurrent assets 
Capital assets, net 

Total assets 

Current liabilities 
Current liabilities payable from current restricted assets 
Noncurrent liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Net Position: 
Net Investaient in Capital Assets 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

2018 2017 Variance 
$ 1,463,397 $ 1,200,506 $ 262,891 

54,208 61,639 (7,431) 
1,562,311 - 1,562,311 
1,841,005 3,427,560 (1,586,555) 
4,920,921 4,689,705 231,216 

75,452 102,772 (27,320) 
39,451 41,802 (2,351) 
90,577 92,087 (1,510) 
205,480 236,661 (31,181) 

1,841,005 3,427,560 (1,586,555) 
2,874,436 1,025,484 1,848,952 

$ 4,715,441 $ 4,453,044 $ 262,397 

Major Factors Affecting the Statement of Net Position 

Total assets increased by $231,216 as of September 30, 2018 mainly because of an increase in accounts receivable 
from HUD for operating and capital fund. 

Total liabilities decreased by $31,181 because of a decrease in vendors accounts payable. 

Table 2 presents details on the change in Unrestricted Net Position. 

12 



Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

September 30, 2018 

TABLE 2 

CHANGE OF UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION 

Unrestricted Net Positon as of September 30, 2017 $ 1,025,484 

Results from Operations (80,331) 

Adjustments: 
Depreciation (1) 393,212 
Funding Provided for Capital Grants (2) 270,164 
Interest Earned on Operations 32,853 
Capital Asset Purchases (296,956) 
Change in Notes Receivable from Component Unit 1,530,010 

Adjusted Results from Operations 1,848,952 

Unrestricted Net Positon as of September 30, 2018 $ 2,874,436 

(1) Depreciation is treated as an expense and reduces the results of operations but does not have an impact on 
Unrestricted Net Position. 

(2) Funding provided for capital grant hard costs, pursuant to GASB 33, is reported as revenue. However, the 
revenue is absorbed by the associated capital purchases and therefore does not increase Unrestricted Net 
Position. 

While the results of operations are a significant measure of the Authority's activities, the analysis of the changes in 
Unrestricted Net Position provides a clearer measure in financial well being. 

13 



Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

September 30, 2018 

The following schedule compares the revenues and expenses of the primary government for the current and previous 
fiscal year. 

TABLE 3 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

2018 2017 Variance 

Revenues 
Tenant Revenue - Rents and Other 
Operating Subsidies and Grants 
Capital Grants 
Other Revenues 

Total Revenue 

Expenses 
Administtation 
Tenant services 
Utilities 
Ordnary maintenance and operations 
General expenses 
Housing assistance payments 
Nonroutine maintenance 
Depreciation 

T otal Expenses 

Net Increase (Decrease) 

588,695 
1,168,982 
270,164 
345.651 

2.373.492 

565,328 
143,729 
116,291 
471,296 
335,911 
75,328 
10,000 

393.212 
2.111.095 

632,815 
1,350,477 
522,441 
120.016 

2.625.749 

630,917 
197,976 
136,996 
532,797 
369,060 

104,179 
580.945 

2.552.870 

(44,120) 
(181,495) 
(252,277) 
225.635 

(252,257) 

(65,589) 
(54,247) 
(20,705) 
(61,501) 
(33,149) 
75,328 

(94,179) 
(187,733) 
(441,775) 

262.397 72.879 189.518 

Major Factors Affecting the Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position 

Total revenues decreased by $252,257 from 2017 to 2018, mainly due to a decrease in capital fund grants and 
operating funds from HUD. 

Total expenses decreased $441,775 from 2017 to 2018 mainly due to decreases in administration, nonroutine 
maintenance and depreciation expense. 

14 



Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

September 30, 2018 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

As of the end of 2018 the Authority had $1,841,005 invested in a variety of capital assets as reflected in the 
following schedule. 

TABLE 4 

CAPITAL ASSETS AT YEAR-END 
(NET OF DEPRECIATION) 

2018 2017 
Land $ 439,459 $ 554,522 
Buildings 12,527,026 16,134,565 
Furniture and Equipment 336,151 322,513 
Accumulated Depreciation (11,461,631) (13,584,040) 
Total $ 1,841,005 $ 3,427,560 

The capital assets had a decrease in land by $115,063 and buildings by $3,591,322 due to the RAD conversion 
eliminating capital assets and transferring them to discrete component units. Accumulated depreciation also 
decreased by $2,116,414 due to the RAD conversion. The Housing Authority had other reductions in addition to the 
RAD conversion. See Note 4 to the notes to the financial statements for additional information. 

The following reconciliation summarizes the change in capital assets. 

TABLE 5 

CHANGE IN CAPITAL ASSETS 

Business 
Activities 

Beginning Balance $ 3,427,560 
Additions, Net of Retirements (1,193,343) 
Depreciation and Amortization (393,212) 
Ending Balance $ 1,841,005 

Debt 

Other than routine payables, accrued liabilities and compensated absences, the Authority did not have debt 
outstanding as of September 30, 2018 or 2017. See Notes 7 and 8 to the notes to the financial statements for 
additional information. 

15 



Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

September 30, 2018 

ECONOMIC FACTORS 

Significant economic factors affecting the Authority are as follows: 

• Federal funding provided by Congress to the Department of Housing and Urban Development. 
• Local labor supply and demand, which can affect salary and wage rates. 
• Local inflationary, recessionary and employment trends, which can affect resident incomes and 

therefore the amount of rental income. 
• Inflationary pressure on utility rates, supplies and other costs. 

FINANCIAL CONTACT 

The individual to be contacted regarding this report is Dana Groover, Executive Director of the St. James Parish 
Housing Authority, at (225) 869-3278. Specific requests may be submittedto the Housing Authority ofthe Parish of 
St. James, 2627 North King Avenue, Lutcher, Louisiana, 70071. 

16 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

Enterprise Funds 
Statement of Net Position 

September 30,2018 

Statement A 

Total Primary 
Government 

Total Discretely 
Presented 

Component Units 
ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 850,771 $ 37,581 
Accounts receivable, net 510,512 8,989 
Prepaid items and other assets 83,533 -
Inventory 18,581 -
Restricted Assets 

FSS escrow 14,757 -
Resident deposits 39,451 12,272 
Reserve for replacement - 19,800 

T otal current assets 1,517,605 78,642 

Non-current assets: 
Notes receivable due from component units 1,530,010 -
Accrued interest receivable due from component units 32,301 -
Other assets - 86,732 
Capital assets 

Land 439,459 306,010 
Buildings, and equipment (net) 1,401,546 9,184,930 

T otal non-current assets 3,403,316 9,577,672 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 4,920,921 $ 9,656,314 

(Continued) 
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Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

Enterprise Funds 
Statement of Net Position 

September 30,2018 

Total Primary 
Government 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 

Bank overdraft 
Accounts and other payables 
Accrued liabilities 
Unearned revenue 
Current portion of compensated absences payable 
Accrued interest payable - construction loan 
Construction loan payable 

Current Liabilities Payable From Current Restricted Assets 
Deposits due others 

Total current liabilities 

Non-current liabilities: 
ESS escrow liability 
Compensated absences payable 
CDBG loan payable 
Accrued interest payable on CDBG loan payable 
Notes payable to primary government 
Accrued interest payable to primary government 
Developer fee payable 
Accmed interest payable on developer fee payable 
Notes Payable 

Total non-current liabilities 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

Statement A 

Total Discretely 
Presented 

Component Units 

$ - $ 2,986 
40,695 1,173,896 

- 13,675 
3,603 55 

31,154 -
- 16,460 
- 4,678,583 

39,451 12,272 

114,903 5,897,927 

14,757 
75,820 -

- 302,494 
- 6,050 
- 1,530,010 
- 43,067 
- 860,000 
- 2,150 

90,577 2,743,771 

205,480 8,641,698 

1,841,005 2,979,853 
2,874,436 (1,965,237) 

$ 4,715,441 $ 1,014,616 

(Concluded) 

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT. 
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Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

Enterprise Funds 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2018 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Dwelling rental 
Federal grants 
Other income 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Administtation 
Tenant services 
Utilities 
Ordinary maintenance and operations 
Protective services 
General e^enses 
Housing assistance payments 
Nonroutine maintenance 
Depreciation and amortization 

Total operating e^enses 

Income (loss) from operations 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Interest earnings 
Interest e^ense 
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 

Capital contributions 

Change in net position 

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR. 

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR 

Total Primary 
Government 

Statement B 

Total Discretely 
Presented 

Component Units 

$ 588,695 $ 234,712 
1,168,982 -

273,087 3,449 

2,030,764 238,161 

565,328 85,570 
143,729 -
116,291 36,516 
471,296 27,388 

- 100 
335,911 374,277 

75,328 -
10,000 -

393,212 177,761 

2,111,095 701,612 

(80,331) (463,451) 

32,853 
- (139,193) 

39,711 -

72,564 (139,193) 

(7,767) (602,644) 

270,164 1,617,260 

262,397 1,014,616 

4,453,044 _ 

$ 4,715,441 $ 1,014,616 

THE NOTES TO THE FDJANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT. 
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Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

Enterprise Funds 
Statement of Cash Flows 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2018 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Rental receipts 
Other receipts 
Federal grants 
Payments to vendors 
Payments to employees 
Payments to private landlords 

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

CASH ELOWS EROM CAPITAL AND RELATED EINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Purchase of capital assets 
Proceeds from loans payable 
Unamortized costs related to capital assets 
Interest paid on capital debt 
Proceeds from capital contributions 

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY CAPITAL 
AND RELATED EINANCING ACTIVITES 

CASH ELOWS EROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Interest and dividends 

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AT BEGINNING OE YEAR 

CASH AT END OE YEAR 

Reconcihation to Financial Statements: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted deposits 
Bank overdraft 

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Total Primary 
Government 

$ 581,024 

244,612 

888,264 
(848,720) 
(830,558) 

(75,328) 

(40,706) 

148.445 

(148,511) 

552 

552 

1.093.644 

850,771 
54.208 

Statement C 

Discretely 
Presented 

Component Units 

$ 238,050 

3,449 

(493,582) 

(252,083) 

(6,121,389) 
4,981,077 

(86,732) 
(71,466) 

1.617.260 

318.750 

37,581 
32,072 
(2,986) 

(Continued) 
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Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

Enterprise Funds 
Statement of Cash Flows 

For the Year Ended September 30,2018 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET 
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 

provided (used) by operating activities: 
Depreciation ej^ense 

Changes in assets and habdities: 
Receivables, net 
Inventories 
Prepaid items 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabihties 
Unearned revenue 
Deposits due others 
Compensated absences 

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Total Primary 
Government 

),331) 

393,212 

(309,581) 
1,680 

(14,505) 
(24,741) 

148 
(7,431) 

843 

Statement C 

Discretely 
Presented 

Component Units 

(463,451) 

174.393 

19,962 
13,675 

55 
12.272 

(40,706) (252,083) 

SCHEDULE OE NON-CASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Notes receivable due from component unit 
Accrued intererst receivable 
Notes payable to primary government 
Deferred developer payable 
Accrued interest payable 

TOTAL 

1,530,010 
32.301 

1.562.311 

1,530,010 
860,000 

45.217 

2.435.227 

(Concluded) 

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT. 
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Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

Enterprise Funds 
Combining Statement of Net Position for the Discrete^ Presented Component Units 

September 30, 2018 

Statement D 

Total Discrete^ 
Convent Trace Central Crossing Presented 

Development, LP Development, LP Component Units 
ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 15,207 $ 22,374 $ 37,581 

Accounts receivable, net 5,436 3,553 8,989 
Restricted Assets 

Resident deposits 4,934 7,338 12,272 
Reserve for replacement 9,000 10,800 19,800 

Total current assets 34,577 44,065 78,642 

Non-current assets: 
Other assets 28,860 57,872 86,732 
Capital assets 

Land 140,000 166,010 306,010 
Buildings, and equipment (net) 3,999,882 5,185,048 9,184,930 

Total non-current assets 4,168,742 5,408,930 9,577,672 

TOTAL ASSETS 4,203,319 5,452,995 9,656,314 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 

Bank overdraft 2,986 - 2,986 
Accounts and other payables 568,146 605,750 1,173,896 
Accrued liabilities 11,562 2,113 13,675 
Unearned revenue 31 24 55 
Accrued interest payable - construction loan - 16,460 16,460 
Construction loan payable 1,959,748 2,718,835 4,678,583 

Current Liabilities Payable From Current Restricted Assets 
Deposits due others 4,934 7,338 12,272 

Total current liabilities 2,547,407 3,350,520 5,897,927 

Non-current liabilities: 
CDBG loan payable - 302,494 302,494 
Accrued interest payable on CDBG loan payable - 6,050 6,050 
Notes payable to primary govemment 700,000 830,010 1,530,010 
Accrued interest payable to primary govemment 21,242 21,825 43,067 
Developer fee payable 460,000 400,000 860,000 
Accrued interest payable on developer fee payable 1,150 1,000 2,150 

Total non-current liabilities 1,182,392 1,561,379 2,743,771 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,729,799 4,911,899 8,641,698 

NET POSITION 
Net Investment in capital assets 1,480,134 1,499,719 2,979,853 
Unrestricted (1,006,614) (958,623) (1,965,237) 

TOTAL NET POSITION $ 473,520 $ 541,096 $ 1,014,616 

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT. 
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Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

Enterprise Funds 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position 

For the Discretely Presented Component Units 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2018 

Statement F 

Convent Trace 
Development, LP 

Central Crossing 
Development, LP 

Total Discretely 
Presented 

Component Units 
OPERATING REVENUES 

Dwelling rental 
Other income 

$ 107,002 
1,577 

$ 127,710 
1,872 

$ 234,712 
3,449 

Total operating revenues 108,579 129,582 238,161 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Administration 
Utilities 
Ordinary maintenance and operations 
Protective services 
General expenses 
Depreciation and amortization 

47,138 
16,826 
14,702 

100 
134,200 

98,796 

38,432 
19,690 
12,686 

240,077 
78,965 

85,570 
36,516 
27,388 

100 
374,277 
177,761 

Total operating expenses 311,762 389,850 701,612 

Income (loss) from operations (203,183) (260,268) (463,451) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Interest expense (48,707) (90,486) (139,193) 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (48,707) (90,486) (139,193) 

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers (251,890) (350,754) (602,644) 

Capital contributions 725,410 891,850 1,617,260 

Change in net position 473,520 541,096 1,014,616 

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR - - -

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR $ 473,520 $ 541,096 $ 1,014,616 

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT. 
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Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Discretely Presented Component Units 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2018 

Statement F 

Covent Trace 
Development, LP 

Central Crossing 
Development, LP 

Total Discretely 
Presented 

Component Units 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Rental receipts 
Other receipts 
Payments to vendors 

$ 106,531 
1,577 

(193,136) 

$ 131,519 
1,872 

(300,446) 

$ 238,050 
3,449 

(493,582) 

ISET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (85,028) (167,055) (252,083) 

CASH ELOWS EROM CAPITAL AISD RELATED EINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Purchase of capital assets (2,518,800) 
Proceeds from loans payable 1,959,748 
Unamortized costs related to capital assets (28,860) 
Interest paid on capital debt (26,315) 
Proceeds from capital contributions 725,410 

(3,602,589) 
3,021,329 

(57,872) 
(45,151) 
891,850 

(6,121,389) 
4,981,077 

(86,732) 
(71,466) 

1,617,260 

ISET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY CAPITAL 
AISD RELATED EINANCING ACTIVITES 111,183 207,567 318,750 

ISET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 
AISD CASH EQUIVALEISTS 26,155 40,512 66,667 

CASH AT BEGINNING OE YEAR . . . 

CASH AT EISD OE YEAR $ 26,155 $ 40,512 $ 66,667 

Reconciliation to Financial Statements: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted deposits 
Bank overdraft 

$ 15,207 
13,934 
(2,986) 

$ 22,374 
18,138 

$ 37,581 
32,072 
(2,986) 

TOTAL CASH AISD CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 26,155 $ 40,512 $ 66,667 

RECONCILIATION OE OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET 
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 

provided (used) by operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Receivables, net 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Unearned revenue 
Deposits due others 

$ (203,183) 

97,506 

(5,436) 
9,558 

11,562 
31 

4,934 

$ (260,268) 

76,887 

(3,553) 
10,404 

2,113 
24 

7,338 

$ (463,451) 

174,393 

(8,989) 
19,962 
13,675 

55 
12,272 

ISET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (85,028) $ (167,055) $ (252,083) 

SCHEDULE OE NON-CASH CAPITAL AISD RELATED EINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Notes payable to primary govemment 
Deferred developer payable 
Accrued interest payable 

$ 700,000 
460,000 

22,392 

$ 830,010 
400,000 

22,825 

$ 1,530,010 
860,000 

45,217 

TOTAL $ 1,182,392 $ 1,252,835 $ 2,435,227 

THE NOTES TO THE FINANQ AL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT. 
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Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

September 30, 2018 
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Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

September 30, 2018 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES The accompanying financial 
statements of the Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James (the Housing Authority) have been prepared in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to 
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body 
for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. 

A. REPORTING ENTITY Housing authorities are chartered as public corporations under the laws LSA-R.S. 
40:391 of the state of Louisiana for the purpose of providing safe and sanitary dwelling accommodations. This 
creation was contingent upon the local governing body of the city or parish declaring a need for the Housing 
Authority to function in such city or parish. The Housing Authority is governed by a five-member board of 
commissioners. 

The Housing Authority has the following units: 
# of Units 

PHA Owned Housing 252 

The accompanying financial statements of the Housing Authority have been prepared in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. 

GASB Standards establish criteria for determining the governmental reporting entity and component units that 
should be included within the reporting entity. Under provisions of these Statements, the Housing Authority is 
considered a primary government, since it is a special purpose government that has a separate governing body, is 
legally separate, and is fiscally independent of other state or local governments. Fiscally independent means that the 
Housing Authority may, without the approval or consent of another governmental entity, determine or modify its 
own budget, set rates or charges, and issue bonded debt. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) establishes criteria for determining which, if any, component 
units should be considered part of the Housing Authority for financial reporting purposes. The basic criterion for 
including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is financial accountability. 

The GASB has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability, which includes: 

1. Appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body, and: 

a. The ability of the government to impose its will on that organization and/or 
b. The potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or impose specific financial 

burdens on the government. 

2. Organizations for which the government does not appoint a voting majority but are fiscally dependent on the 
government. 

3. Organizations for which the reporting entity financial statements would be misleading if data of the organization 
is not included because of the nature or significance of the relationship. 

Based on the previous criteria, the Housing Authority is not a component unit of another agency; however, the 
Housing Authority has determined that the following component units should be considered as part of the Housing 
Authority reporting entity. 
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Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

September 30, 2018 

St. James Housing Alliance, Inc is a legally separate entity, which is a not-for-profit corporation and has a December 
31^ year end. Per the Bylaws, the Board of Directors of St. James Housing Alliance, Inc. is made up of three 
members, which consist of the Chairman of the Housing Authority's Board of Commissioners, Vice-Chairman of the 
Housing Authority's Board of Commissioners and Executive Director of the Housing Authority. This provides the 
Housing Authority with a voting majority of the governing body of the Corporation. St. James Housing Alliance, 
Inc. impose a financial benefit and burden on the Housing Authority. Based on the above, St. James Housing 
Alliance, Inc. is considered to be a component unit of the Housing Authority and should be included under blended 
presentation. 

In April 2016, Convent Trace GP, LLC was created as a legally separate entity, which is a Louisiana limited liability 
company. In July 2016, the operating agreement was amendedandrestatedfor Convent Trace GP, LLC, which lists 
St. James Housing Alliance, Inc. as having 51% membership and the managing member. The St. James Housing 
Alliance, Inc. has the power to bind and the power to impose its will on Convent Trace GP, LLC. Therefore, 
Convent Trace GP, LLC is considered to be a component unit of the Housing Authority under discrete presentation. 

In April 2016, Convent Trace Development, L.P. (CTDLP) was created as a legally separate entity, which is a 
limited partnership under the laws of the state of Louisiana. The partnership was formed to acquire, construct or 
rehabilitate, own and operation a housing complex of 28 residential units for rental to low income residents. The 
partnership acquired the property from the Housing Authority under the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) 
program. The RAD Conversion has allowed the Housing Authority to convert the public housing developments to a 
Section 8 platform, by transferring ownership of the developments to limited partnerships. However, the 
developments will be maintained for low-income households. Upon acquisition, rehabilitation of the property 
commenced and was substantially completed during CTDLP's fiscal year of December 31, 2018. The Managing 
General Partner of CTDLP is Convent Trace GP, LLC. In addition, the Housing Authority has a sub-management 
agreement with CTDLP to assist in overseeing the day-to-day operations and can impose its will on the partnership. 
Based on this information, CTDLP is considered to be a component unit of the Housing Authority under discrete 
presentation. 

In April 2016, Central Crossing GP, LLC was created as a legally separate entity, which is a Louisiana limited 
liability company. In July 2016, the operating agreement was amendedandrestatedfor Central Crossing GP, LLC, 
which lists St. James Housing Alliance, Inc. as having 51% membership and the managing member. The St. James 
Housing Alliance, Inc. has the power to bind and the power to impose its will on Central Crossing GP, LLC. 
Therefore, Central Crossing GP, LLC is considered to a component unit of the Housing Authority under discrete 
presentation. 

In April 2016, Central Crossing Development, L.P. (CCDLP) was created as a legally separate entity, which is a 
limited partnership under the laws of the state of Louisiana. The partnership was formed to acquire, construct or 
rehabilitate, own and operation a housing complex of 36 residential units for rental to low income residents. The 
partnership acquired the property from the Housing Authority. The partnership acquired the property from the 
Housing Authority under the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) program. The RAD Conversion has allowed 
the Housing Authority to convert the public housing developments to a Section 8 platform, by transferring 
ownership of the developments to limited partnerships. However, the developments will be maintained for low-
income households. Upon acquisition, rehabilitation of the property commenced and was substantially completed 
during CCDLP's fiscalyear of December 31, 2018. The Managing General Partner of CCDLP is Central Crossing 
GP, LLC. In addition, the Housing Authority has a sub-management agreement with CCDLP to assist in overseeing 
the day-to-day operations and can impose its will on the partnership. Based on this information, CCDLP is 
considered to be a component unit of the Housing Authority under discrete presentation. 
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Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

September 30, 2018 

The transactions that occurred during the Housing Authority's fiscal year were between the Housing Authority and 
the Limited Partnerships. No financial transactions occurredduringthefiscalyear ended September 30, 2018 for St. 
James Housing Alliance, Inc., Convent Trace GP, LLC and Central Crossing GP, LLC. Therefore, no financial 
information is provided for these organizations. 

Separate financial statements of both Limited Partnerships, CTDLP and CCDLP, were issued for fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2018, and can be obtained from the Housing Authority. 

B. FUNDS The accounts of the Housing Authority are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is an 
independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds 
according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance-related 
legal and contractual provisions. The minimum number of funds are maintained consistent with legal and 
managerial requirements. 

The funds of the Housing Authority are classified as proprietary. 

Proprietary funds account for activities similar to those found in the private sector, where the determination of net 
income is necessary or useful to sound financial administration. Proprietary funds differ fi"om governmental funds in 
that their focus is on income measurement, which, together with the maintenance of equity, is an important financial 
indicator. The general fund (the primary government) accounts for the transactions of the public housing low rent 
program, the capital fund program, public housing family self-sufficiency under ROSS and the sub-management 
transactions with the Limited Partnerships. 

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING Proprietary funds are accounted for on the 
flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues 
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time the liabilities are incurred. With this measurement 
focus, all assets, all liabilities and all deferred outflows/inflows of resources associated with the operation of these 
funds are included on the statement of net position. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with proprietary 
funds' principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues ofthe Housing Authority's funds are federal 
grants received for operations and rent and maintenance charges to residents. Operating expenses for proprietary 
funds include the administrative costs of providing the service. All revenues and expenses not meeting this 
definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

D. INVESTMENTS Investments are limited by R.S. 33:2955 and the Housing Authority's investment policy. If 
the original maturities of investments exceed 90 days, they are classified as investments; however, if the original 
maturities are 90 days or less, they are classified as cash equivalents. 

The investments are reflected at fair value except for the following which are required/permitted as per GASB 
Statement No. 31: 

1. Investments in nonvarticivating interest-earning contracts, such as nonnegotiable certificates of deposit with 
redemption terms that do not consider market rates, are reported using a cost-based measure. 

2. The Housing Authority reports at amortized cost money market investments and varticivatins interest-earning 
investment contracts that have a remaining maturity at time of purchase of one year or less. 
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Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

September 30, 2018 

Definitions: 

Interest-earning investment contract include time deposits with financial institutions (such as certificates of 
deposit), repurchase agreements, and guaranteed investment contracts. 

Money market investments are short-term, highly liquid debt instruments that include U. S. Treasury 
obligations. 

E. CASH A^JD CASH EQUIVALENTS Cash includes amounts in demand deposits and interest-bearing demand 
deposits and short term investments with original maturities of 90 days or less from the date of acquisition. Cash 
equivalents include amounts in time deposits and cash with fiscal agent. Under state law, the Housing Authority 
may deposit funds in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, money market accounts, or time deposits 
with state banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks having their principal offices in Louisiana. 

F. INVENTORY A]\D PREPAID ITEMS All inventory items are valued at cost using first-in, first-out method. 
Inventory is recorded using the consumption method. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items. 

G. CAPITAL ASSETS Capital assets are recorded at historical cost and depreciated over their estimated useful 
lives (excluding salvage value). The capitalization threshold is $1,000. Donated capital assets are recorded at their 
estimated fair value at the date of donation. Estimated useful life is management's estimate of how long the asset is 
expected to meet service demands. 

Straight line depreciation is used based on the following estimated useful lives: 

Buildings 27.5 years 
Building improvements 10 years 
Equipment and furniture 3-10 years 

H. COMPENSATED ABSENCES The Housing Authority follows Louisiana Civil Service regulations for 
accumulated annual and sick leave. Most employees may accumulate up to 300 hours of annual leave which may be 
received upon termination or retirement. However, the Executive Director is considered an unclassified employee 
with the Louisiana Civil Service and is able to obtain full balance of annual leave upon termination or retirement. 
Sick leave hours accumulate, but the employee is not paid for them if not used by his/her retirement or termination 
date. 

I. RESTRICTED NET POSITION Net Position is reported as restricted when constraints placed on Net Position 
use are either: 

Externally imposed by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

It is the Housing Authority's policy to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for 
which both restricted and unrestricted resources are available. 
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September 30, 2018 

J. USE OF ESTIMATES The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statement and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

K. AMORTIZATION Convent Trace Development, L.P., a discretely presented component unit of the Housing 
Authority, amortizes its tax credit costs over the ten-year credit period using the straight-line method beginning in 
the first year in which the credits are taken. For the year ended December 31, 2018, accumulated amortization 
totaled $1,290. 

Central Crossing Development, L.P., a discretely presented component unit of the Housing Authority, amortizes its 
tax credit costs over the ten-year credit period using the straight-line method beginning in the first year in which the 
credits are taken. For the year ended December 31, 2018, accumulated amortization totaled $2,078. 

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS A]\D INVESTMENTS At September 30, 2018, the Housing Authority has cash and cash 
equivalents of $904,979 as follows: 

Deposits are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. Under state law, these deposits (or the resulting bank 
balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. 
The fair value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on 
deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or 
custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties. 

Custodial Credit Risk: At year end, the Housing Authority's carrying amount of deposits was $904,979 (which 
includes restricted cash of $14,757 forFSS escrow and $39,451 for resident security deposits) and the bank balance 
was $855,247. Of the bank balance, $272,262 was covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by 
the Housing Authority's agent in the Housing Authority's name. The remaining balance of $582,985 was 
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent but not in the 
Housing Authority's name. Even though the pledged securities are considered uncollateralized under the provisions 
of GASB Statement No. 3 Louisiana Revised Statue 39:1229 imposes astatutory requirement on the custodial bank 
to advertise and sell pledged securities within 10 days of being notified by the Housing Authority that the fiscal 
agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. The Housing Authority's policy is to have deposits 100% 
collateralized at all times. 

Interest Rate Risk: The Housing Authority's policy does not address interest rate risk. 

Credit Rate Risk: The Housing Authority's policy does not address credit rate risk. 

The carrying amount of the deposits as of December 31, 2018 for Convent Trace Development, L.P., a discretely 
presented component unit of the Housing Authority, was $26,155 in which $15,207 was classified as cash and cash 
equivalents, $13,934 classified as restricted deposits and $2,986 classified as a bank overdraft. As of December 31, 
2018, there were no uninsured deposits. The restricted deposits of $13,934 consisted of $4,934 in tenant security 
deposits and $9,000 in replacement reserve. 
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The carrying amount of the deposits as of December 31, 2018 for Central Crossing Development, L.P., a discretely 
presented component unit of the Housing Authority, was $40,512 in which $22,374 was classified as cash and cash 
equivalents and $18,138 classified as restricted deposits. As of December 31, 2018, there were no uninsured 
deposits. The restricted deposits of $18,138 consisted of $7,338 in tenant security deposits and $10,800 in 
replacement reserve. 

NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES The receivables net of allowance for doubtful accounts for the primary government at 
September 30, 2018, are as follows: 

Class of Receivables 
Tenants, net of allowance of $398 
Notes, net of allowance of $4738 
Fraud Recovery, net of allowance of $7049 
HUD 
Other 

Total 

Amount 
$ 4,027 

680 
477,330 
28,475 

$ 510,512 

Convent Trace Development, L.P. and Central Crossing Development, L.P., discretely presented component units of 
the Housing Authority, reported $5,436 and $3,553, respectively, in accounts receivable related to tenants as of the 
year ended December 31, 2018. 

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS The changes and balances at September 30, 2018 in capital assets for the primary 
government are as follows: 

Balance 
Beginning Additions Deletions 

Balance 
Ending 

Capital asset not being depreciated 
Land $ 554,522 : $ 115,063 $ 439,459 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 554,522 - 115,063 439,459 
Capital assets being depreciated 

Buildings & improvements 16,134,564 280,970 3,888,508 12,527,026 
Fumiture and equipment 322,513 17,187 3,549 336,151 

Total capital assets being depreciated 16,457,077 298,157 3,892,057 12,863,177 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Buildings & improvements 13,323,715 366,663 2,512,071 11,178,307 
Fumiture and equipment 260,324 26,549 3,549 283,324 

Total accumulated depreciation 13,584,039 393,212 2,515,620 11,461,631 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 2,873,038 (95,055) 1,376,437 1,401,546 

Capital assets, net $ 3,427,560 : (95,055) $ 1,491,500 $ 1,841,005 
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The changes and balances at December 31, 2018 in capital assets for the discretely presented component units are as 
follows: 

Balance Balance 
Beginning Additions Deletions Ending 

Capital asset not being depreciated 
Land $ $ 306,010 $ $ 306,010 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 306,010 306,010 
Capital assets being depreciated 

Buildings & improvements 
Furniture and equipment 

9,143,922 
215,401 

9,143,922 
215,401 

Total capital assets being depreciated 9,359,323 9,359,323 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Total accumulated depreciation 174,393 174,393 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 9,184,930 9,184,930 

Capital assets, net $ - $ 9,490,940 $ - $ 9,490,940 

NOTE 5 - RETIREMENT SYSTEM The Housing Authority participates in the Housing Renewal Local 
Agency Retirement Plan. The Housing Authority provides pension benefits for all of its full-time employees 
through a defined contribution plan. All regular and full-time employees are eligible to participate in the plan on the 
first day of the month after completing six months of continuous and uninterrupted employment. 

Under a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment 
earnings. The employer is required to make monthly contributions equal to 8.5 percent of each participant's basic 
(excludes overtime) compensation. The covered employee contributes 6 percent of basic compensation. The 
Housing Authority's contribution for each employee and income allocated to the employee's account are fully vested 
after five years of continuous service. The Housing Authority's contributions and interest forfeited by employees 
who leave employment before five years of service are used to offset future contributions of the Housing Authority. 
There are no assets accumulated in a trust to pay for future contributions of the Housing Authority. 

The Housing Authority's total payroll for year ended September 30, 2018 was $492,275. The Housing Authority's 
contributions were calculated using the base salary amount of $399,826. The Housing Authority made the required 
contributions of $33,346, which was recognized as expense for the fiscal year. The covered employees made the 
required contributions of $23,242 for the year ended September 30, 2018. The Housing Authority reported $4,021 
in forfeitures for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018. 
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NOTE 6 - ACCOUNTS AIND OTHER PAYABLES The account payables balances for the primary government 
at September 30, 2018, are as follows: 

Vendors 
Payroll related liabilities 
Resident council 
Utilities 

Total 

Amount 

5,714 
9,835 

20,874 
4,272 

40.695 

The account payables balances for the discretely presented component units at December 31, 2018, are as follows: 

Vendors 
Contacts 

Total 

Amount 

$ 19,962 
1,153,934 

$ 1,173,896 

NOTE 7 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES At September 30, 2018, employees of the Housing Authority have 
accumulated and vested $106,974 of employee leave benefits, which was computed in accordance with GASB 
Codification Section C60. These amounts are recorded as liabilities in the funds from which payment will be made. 

NOTE 8 - LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS The following is a summary of the long-term obligation transactions 
and balances for the primary government for the year ended September 30, 2018: 

Compensated 
Absences 

Balance, Beginning 
Additions 
Deductions 
Balance, Ending 

Amount Due in One Year 

106,131 
64,092 
63.249 
106.974 

31.154 

The following is a summary of the long-term obligation transactions and balances for the discretely presented 
component units for the year ended December 31, 2018: 

Balance, Beginning 
Additions 
Deductions 
Balance, Ending 

Amount Due in One Year 

Consttuction 
Loan Payable 

$ 
4,678,583 

4.678.583 

CDBG Loan 
Payable 

302,494 

302.494 

Notes Payable to 
Primary 

Government 
$ 

1,530,010 

1.530.010 

$ 4,678,583 $ 
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Construction Loan Payable: 

On November 1, 2017, the CTDLP component unit entered into a construction loan agreement with Home Federal 
Bank. Proceeds from the note were used to pay construction costs of the property. The amount available to draw is 
$2,500,000 at an interest rate of 5.0% per annum and is secured by a mortgage on the rental property. The maturity 
date is March 1, 2019 at which it will convert into permanent financing. 

On January 1, 2018, the CCDLP component unit entered into a construction loan agreement with Home Federal 
Bank. Proceeds from the note were used to pay construction costs of the property. The amount available to draw is 
$3,500,000 at an interest rate of 5.0% per annum and is secured by a mortgage on the rental property. The maturity 
date is July 1, 2019 at which it will convert into permanent financing. 

CDBG Loan Payable: 

On January 1, 2018, the CCDLP component unit entered into a loan agreement with The Louisiana Housing 
Corporation (LHC). LHC granted the funds to CCDLP through the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
Program. Proceeds from the note were used to pay construction costs of the property. The amount available to draw 
is $600,000 at an interest rate of 2.0% per annum and is secured by the same mortgage and security agreement on the 
rental property. The maturity date is January 25, 2053 and annual payments of principal and interest are paid from 
surplus cash commencing on April 1, 2026. 

Notes Payable to Primary Government: 

On November 1, 2017, the CTDLP component unit entered into a promissory note and loan agreement with the 
Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James (the primary government) to finance the acquisition of the property's 
existing building and the land it resides on. The principal balance is $700,000 at an interest rate of 2.6% per annum 
and is secured by a mortgage and security agreement on the rental property. The maturity date is November 1, 2057 
and payments are made from the net cash flow as defined by the agreement. 

On January 25, 2018, the CCDLP component unit entered into a promissory note and loan agreement with the 
Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James (the primary government) to finance the acquisition of the property's 
existing building and the land it resides on. The principal balance is $830,010 at an interest rate of 2.64% per annum 
and is secured by a mortgage and security agreement on the rental property. The maturity date is November 1, 2057 
and payments are made from the net cash flow as defined by the agreement. 

The primary government has reported a corresponding notes receivable from the component unit for these 
transactions. 

AHP Payable to Primary Government: 

In 2016, the Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James was awarded two grants under the Affordable Housing 
Program (AHP) for Convent Trace project of $210,000 and for Central Crossing project of $252,000. These funds 
are funded through the Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas. 

On August 22, 2017, the CTDLP component unit entered into a promissory note and loan agreement with the 
Housing Authority for the AHP funds to finance a portion of the property development and rehabilitation. The 
principal balance is up to $210,000 at an interest rate of 2.58% per annum and is secured by a mortgage and security 
agreement on the rental property. The maturity date is September 30, 2057. 

On January 25, 2018, the CCDLP component unit entered into a promissory note and loan agreement with the 
Housing Authority for the AHP funds to finance a portion of the property development and rehabilitation. The 
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principal balance is up to $252,000 at an interest rate of 2.59% per annum and is secured by a mortgage and security 
agreement on the rental property. The maturity date is January 25, 2058. 

As of the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, the Housing Authority has not drawn the AH? funds down nor has 
the Housing Authority provided funds to the component units under this program. 

NOTE 9 - SUBMANAGEMENT AGREEMENTS On November 8, 2017, the Housing Authority had entered 
into a sub-management agreement with CTDLP component unit, in which the Housing Authority acts as the sub-
manager for the property. The sub-manager manages the day-to-day operations of the property and supports the 
manager that maintains and operations the property. Based on the agreement, the Housing Authority receives a 
management fee of $38,000 per year and an additional $3,829 per year. 

On January 25, 2018, the Housing Authority had entered into a sub-management agreement with CCDLP component 
unit, in which the Housing Authority acts as the sub-manager for the property. The sub-manager manages the day-
to-day operations of the property and supports the manager that maintains and operations the property. Based on the 
agreement, the Housing Authority receives a management fee of $65,000 per year and an additional $4,913 per year. 

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, the Housing Authority received $82,976 from the discretely 
presented component units in accordance to the sub-management agreements. 

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Litigation The Housing Authority is not presently involved in any litigation. 

Grant Disallowances The Housing Authority participates in a number of state and federally assisted grant 
programs. The programs are subject to compliance audits under the single audit approach. Such audits could lead to 
requests for reimbursement by the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants. 

NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT The Housing Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; 
theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Housing 
Authority carries commercial insurance. The amounts of insurance settlements have not exceeded insurance 
coverage for any of the past three years. 

NOTE 12 - ECONOMIC DEPEIVDENCY The Housing Authority is economically dependent on the funding 
provided by the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. The U. S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development provided $1,439,146 to the Housing Authority, which represents approximately 61% of the 
Housing Authority's total revenue for the year. 
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Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments to Agency Head 
September 30, 2018 

Agency Head Name: Dana S. Groover, Executive Director 

Purpose Amount 
Salary $110,094 
Benefits-insurance 6,561 
Benefits-retirement 14,736 
Cell phone 925 
Car allowance 1,500 
Vehicle provided by government 540 
Per diem 1,346 
Dues 1,093 
Reimbursements 941 
Registration fees 1,692 
Conference Travel 5,255 
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Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

Compensation Paid Board Members 
September 30, 2018 

The members of the Board of Commissioners serve without compensation. The members of the Board of 
Commissioners are as follows: 

Florian Oubre, Chairman 

Lameka Williams-Gaines 

Leo McQueen 

Adam Koenig, Vice Chairman 

Youlander Williams 
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Housing Authority of the Parish of St James 

Lutcher, Louisiana 

Submission Type: Audited/Single Audit 

111 Cash - Unrestricted 
112 Cash - Restricted - Modernization and Development 
113 Cash - Other Restricted 
114 Cash - Tenant Security Deposits 
115 Cash - Restricted for Payment of Current Liabilities 
100 Total Cash 

121 Accounts Receivable - PHA Projects 
122 Accounts Receivable - HUD Other Projects 
124 Accounts Receivable - Other Government 
125 Accounts Receivable - Miscellaneous 
126 Accounts Receivable - Tenants 

126.1 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -Tenants 
126.2 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Other 
127 Notes, Loans, & Mortgages Receivable - Current 
128 Fraud Recoveiy 
128.1 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Fraud 
129 Accrued Interest Receivable 
120 Total Receivables, Net of Allowances for Doubtful Accounts 

131 Investments - Unrestricted 
142 Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 
143 Inventories 
143.1 Allowance for Obsolete Inventories 
144 Inter Program Due From 
150 Total Cuirent Assets 

161 Land 
162 Buildings 
163 Furniture, Equipment & Machineiy - Dwellings 
164 Eumiture, Equipment & Machineiy - Administration 
166 Accumulated Depreciation 
167 Construction in Progress 
160 Total Coital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 

171 Notes, Loans and Mortgages Receivable - Non-Current 
172 Notes, Loans, & Mortgages Receivable - Non Current - Past 
174 Other Assets 
180 TotalNon-Current Assets 

290 Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources 

Financial Data Schednie 

As of and For the Year Ended September 30, 2018 

14.870 Resident 14.877Public Housing 6.1 Component 
1 Business Opportunity and Eamily Self-Sufficiency Unit - Discretely 

Project Total Activities Supportive Services under ROSS Presented Subtotal ELIM Total 
$796,659 $54,112 $0 $0 

(h A (h A (h A 

$37,581 $888,352 $888,352 
«bU 

$14,757 
«bU «bU «bU 

$0 $0 $0 $19,800 
«bU 

$34,557 
«bU 

$34,557 
$39,451 $0 $0 $0 

(h A (h A (h A 

$12,272 $51,723 $51,723 
«bU 

$850,867 
«bU «bU «bU 

$54,112 $0 $0 $69,653 
«bU 

$974,632 $0 
«bU 

$974,632 

$0 
$460,067 

$0 $0 $0 
$0 $0 $17,263 
(h A (h A (h A 

$2,814 
$0 

$480,144 
$0 

$480,144 
«bU 

$28,475 
«bU «bU «bU 

$0 $0 $0 
«bU 

$28,475 
«bU 

$28,475 
$4,425 $0 $0 $0 

(h A (h A (h A 

$6,175 $10,600 $10,600 
-sbiyo 

-$4,738 
«bU «bU «bU 

$0 $0 $0 
«bU 

$0 
-sbiyo 

-$4,738 
-sbiyo 

-$4,738 
$4,738 $0 $0 $0 $4,738 $4,738 
$7,729 $0 $0 $0 $7,729 $7,729 
-$7,049 $0 $0 $0 -$7,049 -$7,049 

$493,249 $0 $0 $17,263 $8,989 $519,501 $0 $519,501 

$0 
$82,952 

$0 $0 $0 
$0 $0 $581 

$0 
$83,533 

$0 
$83,533 

$20,646 $0 $0 $0 $20,646 $20,646 
-$2,065 $0 $0 $0 -$2,065 -$2,065 
$16,771 $0 $0 $0 $16,771 -$16,771 $0 

$1,462,420 $54,112 $0 $17,844 $78,642 $1,613,018 -$16,771 $1,596,247 

$439,459 $0 $0 $306,010 $745,469 $745,469 
$12,527,026 $0 $0 $0 $9,143,922 $21,670,948 $21,670,948 

$336,151 
-$11,461,631 

$0 
$1,841,005 

$1,841,005 

$3,303,425 

$1,530,010 
$0 

$32,301 
$1,562,311 

$1,616,423 

$215,401 
-$174,393 

$9,490,940 

$86,732 
5,577,672 

$551,552 
-$11,636,024 

$0 
$11,331,945 

$1,530,010 
$0 

$119,033 
$12,980,988 

$17,844 5,656,314 $14,594,006 -$16,771 

$551,552 
-$11,636,024 

$0 
$11,331,945 

$1,530,010 
$0 

$119,033 
$12,980,988 

$14,577,235 

(Continued) 
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Submission Type: Audited/Single Audit 

311 Bank Overdraft 
312 Accounts Payable <= 90 Days 
313 Accounts Payable >90 Days Past Due 
321 Accrued Wage/Payroll Taxes Payable 
322 Accrued Compensated Absences - Current Portion 
325 Accrued Interest Payable 
331 Accounts Payable - HUD PHA Programs 
332 Account Payable-PHA Projects 
333 Accounts Payable - Other Government 
341 Tenant Security Deposits 
342 Unearned Revenue 

343 Current Portion of Long-term Debt - Capital 
Projects/Mortgage Revenue 

344 Current Portion of Long-term Debt - Operating Borrowings 
345 Other Current Liabilities 
346 Accrued Liabilities - Other 
347 Inter Program - Due To 
310 Total Current Liabilities 

351 Long-term Debt, Net of Current - Capital Projects/Mortgage 
352 Long-term Debt, Net of Current - Operating Borrowings 
353 Non-current Liabilities - Other 
354 Accrued Compensated Absences - Non Current 
350 Total Non-Current Liabilities 

300 Total Liabilities 

508.4 Net Investment in Capital Assets 
511.4 Restricted Net Position 
512.4 Unrestricted Net Position 
513 Total Equity - Net Assets/Position 

Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 

Lutcher, Louisiana 
Finandai Data Scheduie 

As of and For the Year Ended September 30, 2018 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Equity -
Net 

14.870 Resident 14.877 Public Housing 6.1 Component 
1 Business Opportunity and Family Self-Sufficiency Unit - Discretely 

Project Total Actl^'ltles Supportive Services uuderROSS Presented SubtotaJ El.JM Total 
$0 $0 $0 $0 $2,986 $2,986 $2,986 

$5,714 
Sin 

$0 $0 
Sin 

$0 
en 

$1,173,896 $1,179,610 
en 

$1,179,610 
e A 

$8,762 $0 $0 $1,073 $9,835 $9,835 
$31,154 

$0 
$0 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$16,460 
$31,154 
$16,460 

$0 

$31,154 
$16,460 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$39,451 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$0 
$0 
$0 $12,272 

$0 
$0 

$51,723 

$0 
$0 

$51,723 
$3,603 $0 $0 $0 $55 $3,658 $3,658 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$4,678,583 $4,678,583 

$0 

$4,678,583 

$0 
$0 

$25,146 
$0 
$0 

$0 
$0 

$0 
$0 $13,675 

$0 
$38,821 

$0 
$38,821 

$0 $0 $0 $16,771 $16,771 -$16,771 $0 
$113,830 $0 $0 $17,844 $5,897,927 $6,029,601 -$16,771 $6,012,830 

$0 $0 $0 
en 

$0 $1,832,504 $1,832,504 
e A 

$1,832,504 
C A 

$14,757 $0 $0 $0 $911,267 $926,024 $926,024 
$75,820 $0 $0 $0 $75,820 $75,820 
$90,577 $0 $0 $0 $2,743,771 $2,834,348 $0 $2,834,348 

$204,407 $0 $0 $17,844 $8,641,698 $8,863,949 -$16,771 $8,847,178 

$1,841,005 $0 $0 $0 
C A 

$2,979,853 $4,820,858 
C A 

$4,820,858 
iu 

$1,258,013 
iu 

$1,616,423 
iu 
$0 $0 -$1,965,237 $909,199 

$0 
$909,199 

$3,099,018 $1,616,423 $0 $0 $1,014,616 $5,730,057 $0 $5,730,057 

$3,303,425 $1,616,423 $0 $17,844 $9,656,314 $14,594,006 -$16,771 $14,577,235 

(Continued) 
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Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

Finandai Data Scheduie 
As of and For the Year Ended September 30, 2018 

Submission Type: Audited/Single Audit 

14.870 Resident 14.877 Public Housing Unit-
1 Business Opportunity and Family Self-Sufficiency Discretely 

Project Total Activities Supportive Services under ROSS Presented Subtotal ELIM Total 
70300 Net Tenant Rental Revenue $537,792 $0 $0 $0 $234,182 $771,974 $771,974 
70400 Tenant Revenue - Other $50,903 $0 $0 $0 $530 $51,433 $51,433 
70500 Total Tenant Revenue $588,695 $0 $0 $0 $234,712 $823,407 $0 $823,407 

70600 HUD PHA Operating Grants $1,078,702 $0 $29,207 $61,073 $1,168,982 $1,168,982 
70610 Capital Grants $270,164 $270,164 $270,164 
70750 Other Fees $82,976 $82,976 $82,976 

70800 Other Govemment Grants $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
71100 Investment Income -Unrestricted $552 $0 $0 $0 $552 $552 
71200 Mortgage Interest Income $0 $32,301 $0 $0 $32,301 $32,301 
71300 Proceeds from Disposition of Assets Held for $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
71400 Fraud Recovery $3,944 $0 $0 $0 $3,944 $3,944 
71500 Other Revenue $186,167 $0 $0 $0 $1,620,709 $1,806,876 $1,806,876 
71600 Gain or Loss on Sale of Capital Assets $1,200 $38,511 $0 $0 $39,711 $39,711 
70000 Total Revenue $2,129,424 $153,788 $29,207 $61,073 $1,855,421 $4,228,913 $0 $4,228,913 

91100 Administrative Salaries $247,757 $14,630 $0 $0 $262,387 $262,387 
91200 Auditing Fees $26,405 $0 $0 $0 $16,070 $42,475 $42,475 
91300 Management Fee $0 $0 $0 $0 $19,604 $19,604 $19,604 
91310 Book-keeping Fee $0 $0 $0 $0 $300 $300 $300 
91400 Advertising and Marketing $707 $0 $0 $0 $1,680 $2,387 $2,387 
91500 Employee Benefit contributions - $89,158 $3,070 $0 $0 $92,228 $92,228 
91600 Office Expenses $87,714 $0 $5,208 $0 $19,004 $111,926 $111,926 
91700 Legal Expense $10,451 $0 $0 $0 $300 $10,751 $10,751 
91800 Travel $18,385 $0 $0 $0 $18,385 $18,385 
91900 Other $61,845 $0 -$2 $0 $28,612 $90,455 $90,455 
91000 Total Operating - Administrative $542,422 $17,700 $5,206 $0 $85,570 $650,898 $0 $650,898 

92000 Asset Management Fee $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
92100 Tenant Services - Salaries $29,752 $4,062 $12,573 $45,912 $92,299 $92,299 
92300 Employee Benefit Contributions - Tenant $10,707 $1,442 $5,476 $13,848 $31,473 $31,473 
92400 Tenant Services - Other $19,957 $0 $0 $0 $19,957 $19,957 
92500 Total Tenant Services $60,416 $5,504 $18,049 $59,760 $0 $143,729 $0 $143,729 

(Continued) 
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Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

Flnandai Data Scheduie 
As of and For the Year Ended September 30,2018 

Submission Type: Audited/Single Audit 
14.870 Resident 14.877 Public Housing Unit-

1 Business Opportunity and Family Self-Sufficiency Discretely 

Project Total Activities Supportive Services under ROSS Presented Subtotal ET.TM Total 

93100 Water $4,889 $0 $0 $0 $2,124 $7,013 $7,013 

93200 Electricify $60,931 $0 $0 $0 $18,905 $79,836 $79,836 

93300 Gas $1,119 $0 $0 $0 $771 $1,890 $1,890 

93400 Fuel $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

93500 Labor $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

93600 Sewer $49,352 $0 $0 $0 $14,716 $64,068 $64,068 

93000 TotalUtilities $116,291 $0 $0 $0 $36,516 $152,807 $0 $152,807 

94100 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Labor $127,829 $4,284 $0 $0 $132,113 $132,113 

94200 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations -
$126,744 $0 $0 $0 $293 $127,037 $127,037 

Materials and Other 
$127,037 

94300 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations $165,062 $0 $0 $0 $27,095 $192,157 $192,157 

94500 Employee Benefit Contributions - Ordinary $46,000 $1,377 $0 $0 $47,377 $47,377 

94000 Total Maintenance $465,635 $5,661 $0 $0 $27,388 $498,684 $0 $498,684 

95300 Protective Services - Other $0 $0 $0 $0 $100 $100 $100 

95500 Employee Benefit Contributions - Protective $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

95000 Total Protective Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $100 $100 $0 $100 

96110 Property Insurance $118,824 $0 $0 $0 $45,914 $164,738 $164,738 

96120 Liabilify Insurance $24,515 $0 $0 $0 $24,515 $24,515 

96130 Workmen's Compensation $20,251 $0 $0 $0 $118 $20,369 $20,369 

96140 All Other Insurance $72,617 $0 $0 $0 $56 $72,673 $72,673 

96100 Total insurance Premiums $236,207 $0 $0 $0 $46,088 $282,295 $0 $282,295 

96200 Other General Expenses $5,952 $0 $0 $0 $327,919 $333,871 $333,871 

96210 Compensated Absences $63,249 $0 $5,952 $1,313 $70,514 $70,514 

96300 Payments in Lieu of Taxes $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

96400 Bad debt - Tenant Rents $21,453 $0 $0 $0 $270 $21,723 $21,723 

96000 Total Other General Expenses $90,654 $0 $5,952 $1,313 $328,189 $426,108 $0 $426,108 

96710 Interest of Mortgage (or Bonds) Payable $0 $0 $0 $0 $139,193 $139,193 $139,193 

96700 Total Interest Expense and Amortization Cost $0 $0 $0 $0 $139,193 $139,193 $0 $139,193 

96900 Total Operating Expenses $1,511,625 $28,865 $29,207 $61,073 $663,044 $2,293,814 $0 $2,293,814 

(Continued) 
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Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

Finandai Data Scheduie 
As of and For the Year Ended September 30, 2018 

Submission Type: Audited/Single Audit 
14.870 Resident 14.877 Public Housing Unit-

1 Business Opportunity and Family Self-Sufficiency Discretely 
Project Total Activities Supportive Services under ROSS Presented Subtotal ELIM Total 

97000 Excess of Operating Revenue over Operating $617,799 $124,923 $0 $0 $1,192,377 $1,935,099 $0 $1,935,099 

97100 Extraordinary Maintenance $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $10,000 
97200 Casualty Losses - Non-capitalized $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
97300 Housing Assistance Payments $75,328 $0 $0 $0 $75,328 $75,328 
97350 HAP Portability-In $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
97400 Depreciation Expense $393,212 $0 $0 $0 $177,761 $570,973 $570,973 
97500 Fraud Losses $1,785 $0 $0 $0 $1,785 $1,785 
90000 Total Expenses $1,991,950 $28,865 $29,207 $61,073 $840,805 $2,951,900 $0 $2,951,900 

10010 Operating Transfer In $158,736 $0 $0 $0 $158,736 -$158,736 $0 
10020 Operating transfer Out -$158,736 $0 $0 $0 -$158,736 $158,736 $0 
10030 Operating Transfers from/to Primary $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
10040 Operating Transfers from/to Component Unit $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
10100 Total Other financing Sources (Uses) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

10000 Excess (Deficiency) of Total Revenue Over $137,474 $124,923 $0 $0 $1,014,616 $1,277,013 $0 $1,277,013 

11020 Required Annual Debt Principal Payments $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
11030 Beginning Equity $4,453,044 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,453,044 $4,453,044 
11040 Prior Period Adjustments, Equity Transfers and -$1,491,500 $1,491,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 
11050 Changes in Compensated Absence Balance 
11190 Unit Months Available 3101 0 0 0 290 3391 3391 
11210 Number of Unit Months Leased 3033 0 0 0 306 3339 3339 
11270 Excess Cash $1,106,332 $1,106,332 $1,106,332 
11610 Land Purchases $0 $0 $0 
11620 Building Purchases $270,164 $270,164 $270,164 
11630 Furniture & Equipment - Dwelling Purchases 
11640 Furniture &Equipment - Administrative 
11650 Leasehold Improvements Purchases 
11660 Infrastructure Purchases 
13510 CFFP Debt Service Payments 
13901 Replacement Housing Factor Funds 

(Concluded) 
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Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

Actual Capital Fund 
Cost Certificate 

September 30, 2018 

1. The actual Capital Fund costs is as follows: PROJECT 
LA48P092501-14 

Funds Approved $ 404,459 

Funds Expended 404,459 

Excess of Funds Approved -

Funds Advanced 404,459 

Funds Expended 404,459 

Excess of Funds Advanced $ 

2. The distribution of costs by project as shown on the final schedule of 
Capital Fund program expenditures dated 08/31/2018 accompanying 
the actual Capital Fund cost certificate submitted to HUD for approval is in 
agreement with the PHA's records. 

3. Ail Capital Fund program costs have been paid and ail related liabilities 
have been discharged through payment. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 

Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 

Independent Auditor^s Report 

Board of Commissioners 
Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities and the aggregate discretely 
presented component units of the Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James, as of and for the year ended 
September 30,2018 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial 
statements of the Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James and have issued our report thereon dated June 25, 
2019. Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the aggregate 
discretely presented component units, as described in our report on the Housing Authority's financial statements. 
The financial statements of the aggregate discretely presented component units were not audited in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Housing Authority's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Housing Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Housing Authority's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Housing Authority's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
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deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Housing Authority's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agi-eements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
fmancial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an 
instance of noncompliance or other matters that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and 
which is described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 2018-001. 

The Housing Authority's Response to Findings 

The Housmg Authority's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying Schedule 
of Findings and Questioned Costs and the Corrective Action Plan of the Current Year Findings and Questioned 
Costs. The Housing Authority's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Housing Authority's internal control 
or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the Housing Authority's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, tliis communication 
is not suitable for any other purpose. Although the intended use of this report may be limited, under Louisiana 
Revised Statute 24:513 this report is distributed by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

ALLEN, GREEN & WILLIAMSON, LLP 

Monroe, Louisiana 
June 25,2019 
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Report on Compliance For Each Major Federal Program; 
And Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; 

Required by the Uniform Guidance 

Independent Auditor^s Report 

Board of Commissioners 
Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James' compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of 
the Housing Authority's major federal programs for the year ended September 30,2018. The Housing Authority's 
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying Schedule of 
Findings and Questioned Costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its 
federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Housing Authority's major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Compholler General of the 
United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have 
a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about the Housing Authority's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures 
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. 
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Housing Authority's compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the Housing Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended 
September 30, 2018. 

Other Matters 

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance, which is required to be reported in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which is described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and 
Questioned Costs as item 2018-002. Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified with respect to 
these matters. 

The Housing Authority's response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit are described in the 
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs and Corrective Action Plan for Current Year Findings 
and Questioned Costs. The Housing Authority's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the Housing Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of 
compliance, we considered the Housing Authority's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements 
that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Housing Authority's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A 
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than 
a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that have not been identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, we identified a certain deficiency in internal control over compliance, 
as described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 2018-002, that we consider to 
be a significant deficiency. 

The Housing Authority's response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is 
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs and Corrective Action Plan for Current 
Year Findings and Questioned Costs. The Housing Authority's response was not subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 



The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Although the intended use of this report may be 
limited, under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513 this report is distributed by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor as a 
public document. 

ALLEN, GREEN & WILLIAMSON, LLP 

Mom-oe, Louisiana 
June 25, 2019 
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Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2018 

FEDERAL GRANTOR 

CFDA 

Number 

Pass-through 

Grantor No. Expenditures 

United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Direct Programs: 

Pubhc and Indian Housing 

Operating Subsidy 14.850 LA09200000117D, 

LA09200000217D, 

LA09200000118D, 

LA09200000218D 

Pubhc Housing Capital Fund Program 14.872 LA48P092501-14, 
LA48P092501-15, 
LA48P092501-16, 
LA48E092501-16, 
LA48P092501-17 

428. 

Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services 

Pubhc Housing Family Self Sufficiency 

14.870 

14.877 

LA092RPS082A013 

LA092FSH253A016, 

FSS17LA2081 
TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS (Total Department of Housing and Urban Development) 

29,207 

61,073 

1.439.146 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule 
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Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2018 

NOTE 1 - GENERAL The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all 
federal awards programs of the Housing Authority. The Housing Authority reporting entity is defined in Note 1 to 
the Housing Authority's financial statements. Federal awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as 
federal awards passed through other government agencies, is included on the schedule. The information in this 
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Costs Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of operations of the Housing Authority, it is not 
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position or cash flows of the Housing 
Authority. 

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is 
presented using the accrual basis of accounting, which is described in Note 1 to the Housing Authority's financial 
statements. Such expenses are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uninform Guidance, 
wherein certain types of expenses are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 

NOTE 3 - RELATIONSHIP TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Federal awards revenues are reported in the 
Housing Authority's financial statements as follows: 

Amount 
Operating revenues - federal grants $ 1,168,982 
Capital conttibutions 270,164 

Total $ 1,439,146 

NOTE 4 - RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS Amounts reported in the accompanying 
schedule agree with the amounts reported in the related federal financial reports except for changes made to reflect 
amounts in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

NOTE 5 - FEDERAL AWARDS For those funds that have matching revenues and state funding, federal 
expenditures were determined by deducting matching revenues from total expenditures. Federal awards do not 
include the Housing Authority operating income from rents or investments (or other non-federal sources). In 
addition, the entire amount of operating subsidy received during the fiscal year is considered to be "expended" 
during the fiscal year. 

NOTE 6 - LVDIRECT COST RATE The Housing Authority has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis 
indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 
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Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2018 

PART I - Summary of the Auditor's Results 

Financial statement audit 

i. The type of audit report issued was unmodified. 

ii. There were no significant deficiencies required to be disclosed by Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America. 

iii. There was one instance of noncompliance considered material, as defined by the Government 
Auditing Standards, to the financial statement. 

Audit of federal awards 

iv. There was one significant deficiency required to be disclosed by the Uniform Guidance (2 CFR 
200). The significant deficiency was not considered to be a material weakness. 

V. The type of report the auditor issued on compliance for major programs was unmodified. 

vi. The audit disclosed one audit finding which the auditor is required to report under accordance 
with 2 CFR 200.516(a). 

vii. The major federal programs are: 

CFDA# 14.872 Capital Fund Program 

viii. The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs as described in in 
the Uniform Guidance was $750,000. 

ix. The auditee does qualify as a low-risk auditee under the Uniform Guidance. 
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Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2018 

Part II - Findings related to the financial statements which are required to be reported in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards generally accepted in the United States of America: 

Reference # and title: 2018-001 Late Submission of Audit Report to Legislative Auditor 

Entitv-Wide or program/department specific: This finding is entity-wide. 

Criteria or specific requirement: R.S. 24:513 A(5)(a)(i) requires that "...audits shall be completed within 
six months of the close of the entity's fiscal year.: The Housing Authority's audit report should be submitted 
to the Louisiana Legislative Auditor by March 31®^ each year. 

Condition found: The Housing Authority had converted two of its developments to the Rental Assistance 
Demonstration (RAD), which is allowed and encouraged by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development. The conversion process changed the reporting of these two developments from funds of the 
Housing Authority to discretely presented component units. The Housing Authority needed additional time to 
incorporate the discretely presented component units' audited financial statements in order to present the 
Housing Authority as a whole. Therefore, the Housing Authority's audit report was not filed by the required 
deadline. 

Context: The finding is considered an isolated event. After the first year of implementation, the Housing 
Authority should be able to file the audit report in a timely manner. 

Possible asserted effect (cause effect): 

Cause: The Housing Authority had a change in the reporting entity during the fiscal year. 

Effect: The Housing Authority needed additional time and was unable to submit the audit report within 
the six month deadline as required by R.S. 24:513 A(5)(a)(i). 

Recommendations to prevent future occurrences: The Housing Authority should continue to strive to 
ensure the reporting requirement of the audit report is met. 

Origination date and prior vear reference (if applicable): This finding originated fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2018. 

View of responsible official: Due to the conversion and closing of two of our developments to the Rental 
Assistance Demonstration (RAD), the completion of the financial statements as prepared by a separate entity 
outside of the control ofthePHA were delayed. We believe this was due to the fact that this was the first year 
for the report and will be exclusive to this year only and will not be a recurring issue. 
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Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2018 

Part III - Findings and questioned costs for federal awards which are required to be reported 
under the Uniform Guidance: 

Reference # and title: 2018-002 Reporting of the Capital Fund Program 

Federal program and specific federal award identification: CFDA Number Award Years 
FEDERAL GRANTER/ 
PASS THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM NAME 
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Capital Fund Program 14.872 2014,2015 

2016 and 2017 

Criteria or specific requirement: Each Housing Authority that administers covered Capital Fund Program, 
regardless of the amount expended, must submit HUD-60002 information using the Section 3 Summary 
Reporting System (24 CER sections 135.3(a)(1) and 135.90). 

Condition found: The Housing Authority did not submit the required HUD-60002 for the Capital Fund 
Program. 

Context: The U.S. Department of HUD had changed the reporting deadline and the Housing Authority had 
overlooked submitting the report. This finding appears to be systemic. 

Possible asserted effect (cause effect): 

Cause: The U.S. Department of HUD had changed the reporting deadline and the Housing Authority had 
overlooked submitting the report. 

Effect: The Housing Authority did not meet the federal compliance requirement in relation to Reporting. 

Recommendations to prevent future occurrences: The Housing Authority should establish report 
reminders and quality control reviews to ensure reports are submitted in a timely manner. 

Origination date and prior year reference (if applicable): This finding originated fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2017. 

View of responsible official: The report as required to be submitted has been changed to correspond with 
the Eiscalyear end versus the Calendar year reporting deadline was not submitted timely. Due to the current 
agency restructuring since the RAD conversion, the Director was responsible for the reporting until the 
function was to be re-assigned. Unlike in prior years, there was no email reminder from the Section 3 
reporting mailbox and the due date was missed; however, the same has been set as a recurring reminder and 
updated on the agency's monthly/annual required report list. Attempts were made once discovered to enter 
the report after the due date, however the system would not allow the 2018 report to be entered. A support 
email has been submitted on several occasions with no reply and/or remedy to enter the reports as they are 
tied to the expended amounts for the year. The SPEARS system showed no required reports at the time of the 
audit and would not permit any updates. A recent update has been observed on the SPEARS system to allow 
for the addition of reports that are not listed and showing in the expected reports tab and the 2018 reports as 
completed will be uploaded. 
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Summary of Prior Year Audit Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2018 

Reference # and title: 2017-001 Reporting for the Capital Fund Program 

Federal program and specific federal award identification: CFDA Number Award Years 
FEDERAL GRANTER/ 

PASS THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM NAME 
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Capital Fund Program 14.872 2013,2014, 

2015 and 2016 

Condition: Each Housing Authority that administers covered Capital Fund Program, regardless of the amount 
expended, must submit HUD-60002 information using the Section 3 Summary Reporting System (24 CFR 
sections 135.3(a)(1) and 135.90). 

When testing the key line items for the HUD-60002 submitted by the Housing Authority, related to Capital 
Fund Program expenditures, the Housing Authority underreported the total amount of non-construction 
contracts awarded during the reporting period based on the supporting documentation. 

Corrective action planned: See current year finding 2018-002. 

Reference # and title: 2017-002 Reporting for the Resident Opportunity and 
Supportive Services Program 

Federal program and specific federal award identification: CFDA Number Award Years 
FEDERAL GRANTER/ 
PASS THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM NAME 
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services 14.870 2012 

Condition: Annually, the Housing Authority is required to submit the federal financial report, SFS-425, and 
the performance report, eLogic Report. 

Although the reports were submitted by the Housing Authority, when testing the key lines, it was noted that 
the reports contained errors when agreeing to the supporting documentation. 
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Summary of Prior Year Audit Findings and Questioned Costs (continued) 

Corrective action taken; This grant was officially closed and expensed on December 31,2017 and the final 
report has been submitted. We have made the adjustments as noted and detected to the fmal report and will 
submit the final revised reports to the HUD Field office. 

Respectfullwsubmitted, 

Executive Director 
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2627 N. King Avenue - P.(3. Box 280 - Lutcher, LA 70071-0280 
225-869-3278 phone • 225-869-8552 fax 

Corrective Action Plan for Current Year Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2018 

Reference # and title: 2018-001 Late Submission of Audit Report to Legislative Auditor 

Entitv-Wide or program/department specific: This finding is entity-wide. 

Condition: R.S. 24:513 A(5)(a)(i) requires that "...audits shall be completed within six months of the close 
of the entity's fiscal year.: The Housing Authority's audit report should be submitted to the Louisiana 
Legislative Auditor by March 31®' each year. 

The Housing Authority had converted two of its developments to the Rental Assistance Demonstration 
(RAD), which is allowed and encouraged by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. The 
conversion process changed the reporting of these two developments from funds of the Housing Authority to 
discretely presented component units. The Housing Authority needed additional time to incorporate the 
discretely presented component units' audited financial statements in order to present the Housing Authority 
as a whole. Therefore, the Housing Authority's audit report was not filed by the required deadline. 

Corrective action plan: Due to the conversion and closing of two of our developments to the Rental 
Assistance Demonstration (RAD), the completion of the financial statements as prepared by a separate entity 
outside of the control of the PHA were delayed. We believe this was due to the fact that this was the first year 
for the report and will be exclusive to this year only and will not be a recurring issue. We will work with 
outside parties to stress the importance of the completion of the property statements in a timely manner to 
avoid affecting our required reporting deadline. 

Person responsible for corrective action plan: 
Dana Groover, Executive Director Telephone: 225-869-3278 
P O Box 208 Fax: 225-869-8552 
Lutcher, LA 70071 Email: dgroover@stjameshousing.com 

Anticipated completion date: 9/30/2019 

Reference # and title: 2018-002 Reporting of the Capital Eund Program 

Federal program and specific federal award identification: CFDA Number Award Years 
FEDERAL GRANTER/ 
PASS THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM NAME 
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Capital Fund Program 14.872 2014,2015 

2016and2017 
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Correcrtve Action Plan for Current Year Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) 

Condition: Each Housing Authority that administers covered Capital Fund Program, regardless of the 
amount expended, must submit HUD-60002 information using the Section 3 Summaiy Reporting System (24 
CFR sections 135.3(a)(1) and 135.90). 

The Housing Authority did not submit the required HUD-60002 for the Capital Fund Program. 

Corrective action plan: Attempts were made once discovered to enter the report after the due date, 
however the system would not and still will not allow the 2018 report to be entered. A support email 
has been submitted on several occasions with not reply and/or remedy to enter the reports as they are 
tied to the expended amounts for the fiscal year. Prior attempts to enter the reports have been 
unsuccessful; however a recent update or changes have been noted on the repotting page and we will 
submit the 2018 data immediately. To avoid this fi'om occumng in future years, we have entered the 
information on the required monthly and annual report calendar to ensure the deadline is not missed 
without relying on HUD notifications since the change and implementation of the updated system. 
We will continue to have staff trained and implement the required documentation and reporting as 
needed to fully comply in this area. 

Person responsible for corrective action plan: 
Dana Groover, Executive Director Telephone: 225-869-3278 
P O Box 208 Fax: 225-869-8552 
Lutcher, LA 70071 Email: dgroover@stjameshousing.com 

Anticipated completion date: 6/30/2019 

Respectfully suhmitted, 

Executive Director 
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Management Letter 

Board Members 
Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the business-type activities and the 
aggregate discretely presented component units of the Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James as of and 
for the year ended September 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the Housing Authority's basic financial statements, we considered the Housing Authority's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to plan our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinions on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control. 

However, during our audit, we noted certain matters involving internal control that are presented for your 
consideration. This letter does not affect our report dated June 25, 2019, on the financial statements of the 
Housing Authority. We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. Our 
comments and recommendations, which have been discussed with appropriate members of management, are 
intended to improve the internal control or result in other operating efficiencies. We will be pleased to 
discuss these comments in further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of this matter, 
or to assist you in implementing the recommendations. Our comments and management's responses are 
summarized as follows: 

2018-Ml Resident Files and Rent Calculation 

Comment: The Housing Authority is required to review the residents' income on an annual basis. Through 
the re-examination process, the Housing Authority is required to receive and verify pertinent income and 
expense information to calculate the resident's monthly rent. In review of twenty-file resident files, there 
were three files with exceptions noted, which is as follows: 

• One exception noted where there was not supporting documentation for child care costs reported. 
• One exception noted in which the system did not change the resident's file to the updated amount. 
• One exception noted in which the resident's income was not calculated correctly based on the support 

provided. 

Recommendation: The Housing Authority should strengthen the quality control process to ensure the 
documentation is adequately maintained in the resident files as well as income and expenses are properly 
calculated. 
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Management's response: We will increase the number of quality control files selected each month by 10% 
to attempt to identify these calculation and support eixors and data entiy mistakes working at least 30 days 
prior to effective date in order that any needed corrections can be identified, changed and resubmitted. There 
has also been restructuring and the caseload has been divided to add an additional position to increase the 
ability to properly manage the work involved in ensuring additional attention, integrity and care can be 
provided to this critical function of financial and records management and to provide additional oversight to 
reduce errors commonly found to avoid overpayment of rent by eligible residents. 

2018-M2 Employees' Time Records 

Comment: Best practices and good controls required that employees are adequately documenting their time 
worked. These records should be approved by the employee as well as the supeiwisor to certify the 
information being reported is correct. The ffousing Authority had implemented a new system related to 
maintaining and documenting employees' time worked. When testing a sample of timesheets, it was noted 
that the employees and/or superyisors are not adequately approving and signing off on the time record. 

Recommendation: The Housing Authority should establish a quality control system to ensure all employees 
as well as superyisors are adequately signing off as approval of the time records. 

Management's response: Quality control of time and attendance records will continue. An immediate staff 
meeting was conducted to review the time and attendance policy. The implementation of the automated time 
recording system using Paychex resulted in some training and usage technical issues that resulted in 
incomplete approval by the employee (either when absent at the time of payroll or failing to approve his/her 
time prior to the actual close-out by the payroll clerk). We continue to work with Paychex to implement and 
make policy updates as needed as the automation of this function has saved the agency time and resources 
involved in maintaining the manual records, 

******* 

Our audit procedures are designed primarily to enable us to form opinions on the financial statements of the 
business-type activities and the aggi'egate discretely presented component units of the Housing Authority, as 
of and for the year ended September 30, 2018, which collectively comprise the Housing Authority's basic 
financial statements, and therefore, may not reveal all wealcnesses in policies and procedures that may exist. 

Also included ai'e management's responses to our current year management letter items. We have peiTormed 
no audit work to verify the content of the responses. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners, management, 
federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. Although the intended use of this letter may be limited, under 
Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Office of the Louisiana Legislative Auditor 
as a public document. 

ALLEN, GREEN & WILLIAMSON, LLP 

Monroe, Louisiana 
June 25,2019 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT 
ON APPLYING STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

Board Members 
Housing Authority of the Parish of St. James 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the management of Housing 
Authority of the Parish of St. James, Lutcher, Louisiana, and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor (LLA) on the control 
and compliance areas identified in the LLA's Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2018. The Housing Authority's management is responsible for the control and compliance areas 
identified in these Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures. This agreed-upon procedures engagement was performed in 
accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and 
applicable standards of Government Auditing Standards. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the 
responsibility of the specified users of the reports. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the 
sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for 
any other purpose. 

Our procedures and findings are as follows: 

Written Policies and Procedures 

1. Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe that they address each of the 
following categories and subcategories (if applicable to public funds and the entity's operations): 

a) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget 

b) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the vendor list; (3) the 
preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders; (4) controls to ensure 
compliance with the public bid law; and (5) documentation required to be maintained for all bids and price 
quotes. 

c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving 

d) Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, policies and procedures 
should include management's actions to determine the completeness of all collections for each type of 
revenue or agency fund additions (e.g. periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation to utility 
billing after cutoff procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency fund forfeiture 
monies confirmation). 
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e) Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, and (2) reviewing and approving time and attendance 

records, including leave and overtime worked. 

f) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms and conditions, 

(3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process 

g) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, if applicable), including (1) how cards are to be 
controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) required approvers of 
statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., determining the reasonableness of fuel card purchases) 

h) Travel and expense reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by category of 

expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required approvers 

i) including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute 42:1111-1121, (2) actions to 
be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor possible ethics violations, and (4) 
requirement that all employees, including elected officials, annually attest through signature verification that 

they have read the entity's ethics policy. 

j) Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA reporting 
requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

Comment: When reviewing the applicable written policies and procedures for the required elements, the following 
exceptions were noted: 

• Contracting- Policy did not contain the required element of (1) legal review. 

Management's Response: The Procurement Policy statement clarifying the legal review requirement has been 
updated and is set to be approved with the Annual Plan as is being updated during the time of this response. The 
update to satisfy this requirement will be included on the agenda as set for the July 2019 board meeting. 

Board or Finance Comnuttee 

2. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the board's enabling 
legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal period, and: 

a) Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a frequency in 
accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other equivalent document. 

b) For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe that the minutes referenced or 
included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund and major special revenue funds, as 

well as monthly financial statements (or budget-to-actual comparisons, if budgeted) for major proprietary 

funds. Alternately, for those entities reporting on the non-profit accounting model, observe that the minutes 
referenced or included financial activity relating to public funds if those public funds comprised more than 
10% of the entity's collections during the fiscal period. 

c) For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unrestricted fund balance in the 
general fund. If the general fund had a negative ending unrestricted fund balance in the prior year audit 

report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting during the fiscal period referenced or included a 

formal plan to eliminate the negative unrestricted fund balance in the general fund. 

Comment: This section was not tested in the current year as there were no exceptions noted in the prior year. 
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Bank Reconciliations 

3. Obtain a listing of client bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and management's representation 
that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the entity's main operating account. Select the entity's 
main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts (or all accounts if less than 5). Randomly 
select one month from the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the corresponding bank statement and reconciliation 
for selected each account, and observe that: 

a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the related statement 
closing date (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); 

b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management/board member who does not handle 
cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation (e.g., initialed and dated, 
electronically logged); and 

c) Management has documentation reflecting that it has researched reconciling items that have been 
outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable. 

Comment: This section was not tested in the current year as there were no exceptions noted in the prior year. 

Collections 

4. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money orders (cash) are 
prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 deposit sites (or all 
deposit sites if less than 5). 

5. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and management's representation that the 
listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit site (i.e. 5 collection locations for 5 
deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies and procedures relating to employee job duties (if no written 
policies or procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties) at each collection location, and observe that 
job duties are properly segregated at each collection location such that: 

a) Employees that are responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 

b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making bank deposits, unless 
another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection documentation (e.g. pre-numbered 
receipts) to the deposit. 

c) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection entries to the general 
ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling ledger postings 
to each other and to the deposit. 

d) The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or subsidiary ledgers, 
by revenue source and/or agency fund additions are not responsible for collecting cash, unless another 
employee verifies the reconciliation. 

6. Inquire of management that all employees who have access to cash are covered by a bond or insurance policy 
for theft. 

7. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for procedure #3 under "Bank 
Reconciliations" above (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made on the dates 
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randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are made on the same day). Alternately, 

the practitioner may use a source document other than bank statements when selecting the deposit dates for 
testing, such as a cash collection log, daily revenue report, receipt hook, etc. Obtain supporting documentation 

for each of the 10 deposits and: 

a) Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

b) Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 

c) Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

d) Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location (within one 

week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the deposit is less than $100). 

e) Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

Comment: No exceptions were noted as a result of applying the agreed upon procedures. 

Non-Payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases/payments, travel reimbursements, and petty cash 
purchases) 

8. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's representation that the 
listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 5). 

9. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain a listing of those employees involved with non-payroll 

purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures relating to employee job duties (if 
the agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties), and observe that 
job duties are properly segregated such that: 

a) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, and placing an 

order/making the purchase. 

b) At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 

c) The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited fi"om adding/modifying vendor files, unless 
another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files. 

d) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the signed checks to 
an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

10. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain the entity's non-payroll disbursement transaction population 

(excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management's representation that the population is 
complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each location, obtain supporting documentation for each 

transaction and: 

a) Observe that the disbursement matched the related original invoice/billing statement. 

b) Observe that the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, electronic logging) of 
segregation of duties tested under #9, as applicable. 

Comment: No exceptions were noted as a result of applying the agreed upon procedures. 
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Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/P-Cards 

11. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and P-cards (cards) for 
the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the persons who maintained possession of the 
cards. Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. 

12. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) that were used 
during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined statement for each card (for a 
debit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement), obtain supporting documentation, and: 

a) Observe that there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and supporting 
documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception reports for excessive fuel 
card usage) was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the authorized card holder. 
[Note: Requiring such approval may constrain the legal authority of certain public officials (e.g., mayor of a 
Lawrason Act municipality); these instances should not be reported.)] 

b) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

13. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #12 above, excluding fuel cards, randomly 
select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each statement, and obtain supporting 
documentation for the transactions (i.e. each card should have 10 transactions subject to testing). For each 
transaction, observe that it is supported by (1) an original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was 
purchased, (2) written documentation of the business/public purpose, and (3) documentation of the individuals 
participating in meals (for meal charges only). 

Comment: When testing the credit card statements, two exceptions were noted where financing and late fees were 
charged. When testing the credit card transactions, there were several transactions that did not have a stated business 
purpose. 

Management's Response: Financing and late fees discovered during this test were both reversed by the Card issuer 
due to address changes for the payment mailboxes. Receipts are turned in within 24-48 hours of purchase if unable 
to do so on the date of purchase in order that purchase orders or requisitions may be processed and set up for 
payment immediately upon verification and processing. Checks are processed and mailed within 7 to 10 days (or in 
most cases sooner) prior to the due date for invoices to avoid any and all late fees. It is not the practice or the policy 
of the agency to pay bills or invoices late. Some of the transactions pulled at the time of testing did not have stated 
or clear business purpose listed; however, this has not always been the practice for routine expenses. We will ensure 
that all business purposes are clearly stated, even for routine and regular purchases to clarify and support the 
business need. 

Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursements (excluding card transactions) 

14. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during the fiscal 
period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. Randomly select 5 
reimbursements, obtain the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid expense documentation of each 
selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. For each of the 5 reimbursements selected: 

a) If reimbursed using a per diem, agree the reimbursement rate to those rates established either by the State of 
Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Administration (www.gsa.govL 

b) If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an original itemized receipt 
that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

67 



c) Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public purpose (for meal 
charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those individuals participating) and other 
documentation required by written policy (procedure #lh). 

d) Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the person 
receiving reimbursement. 

Comment: No exceptions were noted as a result of applying the agreed upon procedures. 

Contracts 

15. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, materials and supplies, 
leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal period. Alternately, the 
practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as an active vendor list. Obtain management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 contracts (or all contracts if less than 5) from the 
listing, excluding the practitioner's contract, and: 

a) Observe that the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law (e.g., solicited 
quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law. 

b) Observe that the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by policy or law (e.g. 
Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter). 

c) If the contract was amended (e.g. change order), observe that the original contract terms provided for 
such an amendment. 

d) Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the supporting 
invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe that the invoice and related payment agreed 
to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

Comment: This section was not tested in the current year as there were no exceptions noted in the prior year. 

Payroll and Personnel 

16. Obtain a listing of employees/elected officials employed during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees/officials, obtain related paid salaries 
and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel files. 

17. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees/officials selected under #16 
above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period, and: 

a) Observe that all selected employees/officials documented their daily attendance and leave (e.g., vacation, 
sick, compensatory). (Note: Generally, an elected official is not eligible to earn leave and does not 
document his/her attendance and leave. However, if the elected official is earning leave according to policy 
and/or contract, the official should document his/her daily attendance and leave.) 

b) Observe that supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees/officials. 

c) Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entity's cumulative leave 
records. 



18. Obtain a listing of those employees/officials that received termination payments during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two employees/officials, obtain related 
documentation of the hours and pay rates used in management's termination payment calculations, agree the 
hours to the employee/officials' cumulate leave records, and agree the pay rates to the employee/officials' 
authorized pay rates in the employee/officials' personnel files. 

19. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of payroll taxes, retirement 
contributions, health insurance premiums, and workers' compensation premiums have been paid, and associated 
forms have been filed, by required deadlines. 

Comment: When testing attendance leave there were two exceptions noted where attendance was only partially 
approved. No other exceptions noted. 

Management's Response: Training/staff meeting was held with all employees after audit testing to review the 
approval process for payroll since the implementation of the automated process. Where partial approvals were found, 
the employee had not followed all of the required steps to remotely access the system to do so. This will continue to 
ensure approval and will be documented in writing in the payroll records when an approval was unavailable at any 
time due to absence, technical issues or supervisor late completion of payroll review where the report was completed 
for final processing to avoid a delay in payroll. 

Ethics 

20. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #16 under "Payroll and Personnel" above-
obtain ethics documentation from management, and: 

a. Observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed one hour of ethics training 
during the fiscal period. 

b. Observe that the documentation demonstrates each employ ee/official attested through signature verification 
that he or she has read the entity's ethics policy during the fiscal period. 

Comment: This section was not tested in the current year as there were no exceptions noted in the prior year. 

Debt Service 

21. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes issued during the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing is 
complete. Select all bonds/notes on the listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe that State Bond 
Commission approval was obtained for each bond/note issued. 

22. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management's representation that 
the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, inspect debt covenants, obtain supporting 
documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree actual reserve balances and payments to those 
required by debt covenants. 

Comment: This section was not tested as the housing authority does not have debt service. 



other 

23. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the listing, obtain supporting 
documentation, and observe that the entity repoifed the misappropriation(s) to the legislative auditor and the 
district attorney of the parish in which the entity is domiciled. 

24. Obsei-ve that the entity has posted on its premises and website, the notice requu-ed by R.S. 24:523.1 concerning 
the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds. 

Comment: No exceptions were noted as a result of applying the agreed upon procedures. 

We were not engaged to and did not perform an examination or review, the objective of which would be the 
expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those control and compliance area identified in the SAUPs. 
Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other 
matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those control and compliance area 
identified in the SAUPs and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report 
is distributed by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

ALLEN, GREEN & WILLIAMSON, LLP 
Monroe, Louisiana 
June 25, 2019 
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